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UnlverSIty of Brighton Academles Trust (formerly Hastlngs Academles Trust)

| 'Trustees Report for the year ended 31 August 201 7

: Introductlon '

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and Auditors'
" Report of the University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)' for the
~ year ended 31 August 2017. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report and

. a directors’ report under company Iaw .

The University of Bnghton Academles Trust (formerly Hastings Academles Trust) has been
established for the purpose of advancing education in the United Kingdom for the publlc benefnt
The Trust operates nine’ academles in Hastings and St Leonards as follows:

Number on

Academy . Phase Date joined Type Capaclty
' g v ' ' - rollin
. 2016/17-
(Oct 2016
S A S : : census)
" The Hastings Secondary ©~ September  Sponsored 900 (+SEN » 851
Academy (11-16 years)- 2011 A "~ Facility of 20) .
The St Leonards ~ Secondary ‘September Sponsored 1,500 (+SEN .~ 1,358
Academy (11-16 years) 2011 Facility of 25)- - - -
The Baird anary' Primary January Sponsored 420 414 (with
Academy » 2014 ' nursery
A . o - 440)
: Churchwood . Primary September  Converter 210 206 (with
Primary Academy : ' 2014 o " nursery. .
. - o . - 244)
Dudley Infant Infant November- .- Converter 180 178
Academy . . 2013 ‘ ' _
Hollington Primary  Primary September Converter 420 . 378 (with
Academy o 2014 : nursery
T s - 429)
Robsack Wood Primary . September. Converter. . 420 398 (with
Primary Academy - 2014 Co ' " nursery -
. _ ' Lo : o 444)
Silverdale Primary  Primary- February Converter.. - 630 623
- Academy : 2015 ' o :
- West St Leonards  Primary " November Sponsored 420 (inca - 409 .
Primary Academy - . 2013 - .SEN Facility
C _ : - of 12)
.. Total 5,145 -4,815
Wlth nursery 4 976

- The Baird, Churchwood Hollington and Robsack Wood operate nurserles from their academies.

Further significant expansnon_ of the Trust is not anttcrpated. '

' The Hastings Academies Trust changed its name to University of Brighton Academies Trust on 1 September-2017. All
references to University of Brighton Academies Trust in this document are-referring the company known as Hastings
Academies Trust until 1 September 2017. For ease of reference the term ‘Trust’ is-normally used when referring to
University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust). .
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‘U:niver's-ity of Brighton Academies Trust '(fo'rmerly Hastings Academies Trust)

: Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution ‘

‘The Trust is a company ||m|ted by guarantee and an exempt charlty The Memorandum and
Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees are also.
the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of Company Law. The University of

* Brighton is the lead sponsor of the Trust, with BT as co-sponsor.-BT formally withdrew as co-

sponsor with effect from 26/4/17.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are mcluded in the Reference and
Admlnlstratlve Detalls sectlon above.-

" Members' Lrablllty

- Each meémber of the Trust undertakes to contnbute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £1O for the debts and liabilities contracted before
they ceased to be a member.

Trustees Indemnltles

Every Trustee is indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any I|ab|I|ty incurred by him/her
in that capacity in defending any proceedings, whether criminal or civil, in which Judgment is given
in favour-or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is ‘granted
to him by the court from liability for -negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation
to the affalrs of the Trust. :

,Method of Recru:tment and Appomtment or Election of Trustees

In accordance with the Trust's Articles of Association, the University of Bnghton as sponsor, may
appoint up to nine Sponsor Trustees. As co-sponsor, BT may appoint up to two Trustees. The
Chief Executive is also a Trustee. Up to five chairs of the Trust's local governing bodies can be
appointed as Academy Trustees. The Secretary of State may. appomt addltlonal Trustees and
further Trustees (in specnfled cnrcumstances)

The Articles were revised with effect from 26 April 2017 following BT’s withdrawal as co-sponsor.
These state that as the lead sponsor, the University of Brighton may appoint up to nine Sponsor
Trustees. The Chief Executive is also a Trustee. Up to five chairs of the Trust's local governing
bodies can be appointed as Academy Trustees. The Secretary of State may appoint additional
Trustees and further Trustees (in specified circumstances).

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The Trust is committed.to adopting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. The"
current Trustees have been selected on the basis of having experience at Board level in other.
‘similar organisations. The Trust has established procedures for the induction and training of hew
Trustees, who may not have the same level of experience. A similar approach is taken to the -

' 'mductlon and training of new members of local governlng bodies.’ '

Orgamsat:onal Structure : :
The Board of Trustees is the Trust's governlng body and is responsible for polncy dlrectlon The
Board of Trustees meets at least four times a year. The Board has one committee which is the
Audit and Resources Committee, which normally meet three times a year. The Board of Trustees
has established five panels which meet as required - these are the Admissions, Exclusions,
‘Grievance, Disciplinary and Complaints panels. The Board of Trustees is represented on these
panels. An Educatlon Advisory Group adwses the Board on educatlon and standards related
atters :
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

The Trust has also established a Local Governing Body for each academy (in the case of The
Hastings Academy and The St Leonards Academy, there is a joint Local Governing Body). Each
academy'’s Local Governing Body includes up to two members who are parents of students/pupils
in the academy, who are elected by parent of students/pupils in the academy (in the case of The
Hastings Academy and The St Leonards Academy, there is one parent representative from each

academy). A further member of each Local Governing Body is a member of staff of the academy,
who is-elected by staff in the academy

Local governlng bodies have a range of formal delegated responsrblhtles associated with the
implementation of the Trust's vision and values and its policies.

: Durmg 2016/17, a major review of the Trust s governance structure was undertaken to be
implemented from 1/9/17, which was completed in conjunction with a proposal to merge: the
University of Brighton Academies Trust and the Hastings Academies Trust. The aims of the review
were to maximise efficiencies and minimise duplication; provide absolute clarity regarding
accountability; ensure complete transparency in roles and responsibilities; promote the principle of
shared responsibility for the outcomes of all children and young people; ensure that governance:
-structures reflect the flexibility of executive structures; ensure that colleagues contributing to the
governance of the trust are highly skilled and experienced; consider the ways in which the
governance structure can more strongly llnk to the academies’ local communities; and |mprove
communlcatlons across the trust.

Under the revised arrangements, the Board of Trustees will be supported by four specialist
committees (Education & Standards; Finance & Resources; Risk & Audit; and Remuneration &
HR), a Local Board for each academy or group of academies (with responsibilities including the
academy’s vision & strategic plan, community engagement and pupil wellbeing) and a formaIIy
constituted Chairs Forum (comprlsmg trustees and local board chairs).

The Trust is managed by the Chref Executive together with a senior management team and central
support staff. The senior. management team comprises the Chief Executive, the Director of
Planning, Policy and Governance, the Director of Operational Servrces the Director of School
Improvement and the Pnncrpals of the academies.

The Trust is a single legal entity which must account separately to the Department for Education |n
relation to each academy. The Chief Executive is the Trust's Accountlng Officer. :

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneratlon of key management personnel

The pay and remuneration of key management personnel (members of the -Executive Team and
Academy Principals) is set by the Board of Trustees, and is in accordance with the Trust s Senior
Staff Pay and Appraisal Policy.

Related Parties and other Connected. Charities and Organisations :
As the lead sponsor of the Trust, the University of Brighton has continued to provide managerial
and administrative support to enable the Trust to achieve its objectives. It has also continuedto . -
provide professional development opportunities, via its School of Education, to members of staff in
the Trust. The Trust also provides a School Direct Initial Teacher Training Programme in. '
- conjunction with the University of Brrghton s School of Education.

The members of the Trust's Senior Management Team (Chief Executive, Director of Planning,
Policy ahd Governance, Director of Operational Services and Director of School Improvement) and
one member of administrative staff supporting the Trust's work have contracts of employment with
the University of Brighton (a proportion of their salary costs are re-charged to the Trust)

BT has supported the Trust through the actlve contribution of its appornted members of the Board
of Trustees. ‘ .
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UniVerSlty of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings,Academies Trust)

The Trust jointly appointed an Executive Pnncrpal wrth the Diocese of Chlchester Academy Trust in
2014, who led Dudley Infant Academy (an academy in the University of Brighton Academies Trust)
and All Saints Church of England Junior Academy. (an academy in the Diocese of Chichester
-Academy Trust). The Executive Principal's contract of employment was with the University of
Brighton Academies Trust; the Diocese of Chichester Academies Trust contributed a proportion of
~‘the Executive Principal’s salary costs. There was a memorandum of understanding between the

University of Brighton Academies Trust and the Diocese of Chichester Academies Trust These .
arrangements ended by mutual agreement with effect from 1 January 2017.

In November 2014, the University of Brrghton launched a second multi academy trust for schools
wishing to become academies in Sussex (outside Hastings). This trust was originally named
University of Brighton Academies Trust and changed its name to Hastings Academies Trust on
1/9/17.. Two academies joined this second multi academy during 2014/15, a further two joined
during 2015/16 and a further two joined during 2016/17. The Hastings Academies Trust and the -
University of Brighton Academies Trust have a shared executive management team (specifically, -
“Chief Executive, Director of Planning, Policy and Governance, Director of Operational Services
* and Director of School Improvement). The University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly
Hastings Academies Trust) provides the central support services at cost price to the Hastings
" Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust). There are shared school
|mprovement and professional development activities across the two trusts

E Dunng the 2016/17 year, the Trustees of the two Trusts resolved to merge to become a single
multi academy trust.. This was effected by the academies comprising the Hastings Academies
Trust (formerly University of Brighton-Academies Trust) transferring to the University of Brighton
Academies Trust (formerly Hastrngs Academies Trust) with effect from 1/9/17. The names of the
two trusts swapped on the same date.

Objectives .a‘nd Activities

Objects and Aims - _

The objectives of the Trust as set out in its Articles of Assocration are specrflcally restricted to the
- following: “to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing academies”; offering a broad curriculum with a strong emphasis 'on but
in no way limited to either one, ora combrnatlon of the specrallsms specified in the relevant
Funding. Agreements ‘

The'Trust’s overall aim and mission is to raise aspiration and provide high quality educatio‘n for
young people in the Hastings and St Leonards area, by addressing educational underperformance
and maximising achievement and therefore progression to further and higher education.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Trust's objectives are:
¢ To continue to support the regeneration. of Hastings by taking a leadrng role in a cohesive
strategy for the development of education in the town;
e To provide a vertical educational partnership with high quality education provision for young
people in the town, from nursery, to primary and secondary education, facrlrtatlng progressron E
~ to vocational and degree level opportunities; :
e ~ To build on the Trust's family of schools by providing mutual challenge and support through
“peer working and school to school support;
To provide challenge and timely support to academies;
From the Trust’s links with the University of Brighton, to provide first class, evidence based
,educatlon research that is recognised locally, nationally and internationally and is relevant both
to academy leaders and policy makers; to provide access to research that identifies best
practice so that school improvement is rapid, sustainable and continuous, rooted in evidence of
successful practice elsewhere that can be differentially applied to individual schools according
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

" to their circumstances; and to exploit the links between initial teacher training with school
improvement initiatives; :

» To provide high quality teachlng and Iearnlng underpinned by strong and effective leadership;

e To provide « career pathways and high quality professional development to all staff within the
Trust, from initial teacher training to leadership;

o To provide a robust performance management framework that Ilnks performance related pay to -
achievement;

e To provide a strong team of welI -qualified staff responsible for the dehvery of support services.

The Trust's vision of educatlonal excellence in the Hastmgs area and beyond will be secured by
the implementation of a long-term strategy for school improvement and through establishing a
strong educatlonal partnershlp wuth educatlonal |nst|tut|ons in the town. :

The Trust's school improvement strategy is based on challenge and support collaboration, school
to school support and professional development. A Strategic Improvement Group oversees school
improvement activity, with responsibility for (i) identifying common priorities and co-ordinating trust
level actions; (ii) facilitating the sharing of good practice and staff expertise across the trust; (iii)
considering how to develop career progression opportunities, including the development of Lead
Principals and Expert Practitioners; and (iv) developing and monitoring the trust's annual strategic
improvement plans. A strong school improvement workforce has been developed, drawing on

" internal expertise and complemented by external experts and support from national teachmg
schools. The strategy also maximises links with the University’s School of Educatlon in support of
the training and professional development of staff. ,

The Trust’s partnershlp strategy has been exemplified by the extensnon of sponsorship to primary -
schools, notably the partner schools to The Hastings Academy and The St Leonards Academy.

This ensures continuity and progression for children’s learning as they transfer from one phase to . .
another, as well as a cohesive strategy for the development of education in the town, not least in
ensuring value for money. A ‘Vertical Education Partnership’ has been established, comprising the
Trust's academies and the local further education college so that an all-through and high quality
education is provided for young people in the town, from primary to vocational and degree level
opportunltles :

The Trust s strategy for the development and implementation of its vision is based upon the
‘capacities of the University and its strategic partners to provide all the elements necessary for the
sustainable development of successful schools. These capacities-include: intervention, where this
is required; research into school improvement (including best practice and how this is. successfully
applied in differing settings); the development of curriculum expertise; sustainable supply of the
. best teaching staff through initial teacher training and professional development, particularly

- shortage subjects; performance management of staff at all levels within'the academies; and the
delivery of high quality back office professional services that will deliver value for money support,
including finance, HR, facilities management, ICT, marketing and governance. - -

During 2016/17, as part of the proposal to merge the University of Brighton Academies Trust and
Hastings Academies Trust, the trusts’ values, vision and mission were reviewed and refreshed
" ready for the launch of the merged trust from 1/9/17. »

" Public Benef:t

The Board has referred to the guidance contalned in the Charity Commission's general guudance
on public benefit when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning future activities.
In particular, the Trustees con5|dered how planned activities would contribute to the aims and
objectlves they have set. A

The Trust provides beneflts to the public by adding value through its academies and by achuevnng
the folIownng objectlves -
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University of Brig'hton'Academies Trust (formerly Haétings Academies Trust)

e to raise educational standards by adding value through innovation, specuahsms and by -
creating new opportunmes for students :
to ensure high attainment and improved social mobility and inclusion
to provide an education where children become successful and, in due course, confident
“adults who are sought after by employers
e to provide an inclusive ethos which values dlverSIty greater mtegratnon and communlty
cohesion
e to create awareness of envuronmental issues facmg the world and to develop innovative -
' projects in which young people can participate
" e to enable parents, carers and local communities to benefit from the facmtles of academles
where practlcable for education, training, health, fitness and recreation.

Strateglc Report

Context

All of the academies in the Trust serve communities with a high degree of social dlsadvantage

" -Since 2008, Hastings has moved from being the 31 most deprived borough in the country to the -
20" most deprived (according to the 2015 Indices of Deprivation). Hastings has two ‘Lower layer
super output areas’ (LSOAs) which are amongst the most deprived 1% in the country in the Baird
and Tressell wards. A further 13 LSOAs are in the most deprived 10%. In these areas,

- approximately 40% of children live in-poverty (i.e. children living in families in receipt of out-of-work
benefits or in receipt of tax credits with a reported income below 60% of the national median

" income). Many of the academies’ pupils/students come from these communities

The charactenstlcs of the pupils/students in the Trust's academies are available in the most recent
Department for Education School Performance Tables (2015/16), and confirm that the academies
are highly inclusive schools which serve, in most cases, a significantly higher proportion of
disadvantaged children than local and national averages:

Academy - | ' ' Dlsadvantaged students

The Hastings Academy ‘ 54.2% .
The St Leonards Academy - » 43.6% . .
National (Secondary) E : 29.3%

The Baird Primary Academy o 50.1%

Churchwood Primary Academy 54.8%

Dudley: Infant Academy _ - 20.0%

Hollington Primary Academy = _ 55.6%

Robsack Wood Primary Academy - 28.6%

Silverdale Primary Academy : 23.1%

West St Leonards Primary Academy 31.0%

Natlonal (Primary) : 25.4%

There are 25 places for students with h|gh level physical needs or autism in a special facnllty in The
St Leonards Academy, and 20 places for students with speech, language and communication
difficulties in a special facility at The Hastings Academy. West St Leonards Primary Academy also
has a special facility, with 12 places for chuldren with moderate Iearnlng difficulty and physical
disabilities. : . A

In most of the Trust's academies, the proportton of pupils/students with an identified special '

~ educational need is mcreasnng, with' approxamately 20% of puplts/students having add|t|onal
learning needs
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

| Key Educational Performance Indicators )
Progress and attainment

Secondary academies

In 2016/17 the provisional Attainment 8 score for The Hastmgs Academy was 36 04 and 41% of
students achieved grade 4 or above in the new reformed GCSEs in English Language/English
Literature and mathematics. The academy’s provisional Progress 8 score was -0.30. There were
strong results in Spanlsh Triple Science, Drama, Art and Photography.

In 2016/17 the provisional Attainment 8 score for The St Leonards Academy was 41.54, and 53%
of students achieved grade 4-or above in the new reformed GCSEs in English Language/English

Literature and mathematics. The academy’s provisional Progress 8 score was 0.00. Over.70% of
students gained a grade 4 or above in English Literature, and there was improved performance in
Modern Languages, ICT and PE.

Both academies were above the government’s floor measure.

- Primary academies

Key Stage 2

Nationally, 60.9% of pupils reached the expected standard in reading, wrmng and mathematlcs
combined in 2016/17 (the government's floor measure is 65%). The percentage reaching the
“expected standard in reading, wntmg and maths in each pnmary academy in the Trust is set out
below.

Baird - - Chur(:hwood " Hollington Robsack Silverdale . West St
: A ' . ' . ‘ Leonards
28.0 . 54.3 51.1 50.8 - .51.1 , 45.5

There is also a progress measure for each academy, which is based o-n national brogress rates
from key stage 1 outcomes. The progress in-each primary academy in the Trust is set out below:
(4 = Above Floor measure) .

Progress . Floor | Baird - Church- Hollington Robsack Silverdale WSL
| target . ____wood : .
Reading -5.0 24| A |05 A 20 | A | 33| A |02 A |-22 )
Writing | -7.0 26 [ A |33 | A2 129 A |17 A |20 A |06 |
Maths 50 '|-26 [ A 00 | A |25 [ A |17 A |20 A |19 N

All academies were above the government's floor measure, and there is a general rising trend of
“attainment and progress. In particular, there is a rising trend of improvement in mathematics,
primarily due to the introduction of the mastery approach. An increasing number of academies
were close to, at or above national averages in individual subjects.

Key Stage 1
In the phonics screening check, the majority of academies either improved or malntalned the -
roportion of pupils who reached the expected standard at the end of Year 1:

National Baird Church- | Dudley Hollington Robsack Silverdale | WSL
(2017) : wood o : . _
81 71 57 77 80 82 80 80

There is a rising trend of improvement in the percentage of puplls who reached the expected
standard in reading, writing and maths by the end of key stage 1:
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~ University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust) -‘

National Baird . Church- Dudley Holling-- | Robsack | Silverdale WSL
(2017) | - wood ton -
Readin . 755 .74 77 61 80 76 70 83"
Writing | - 682 | 62 | 77 39 80 68 .65 . 70 .
, Maths 751 74 73 54 84 81 66 68

Early Years Foundat/on Stage '

The proportion of pupils who reached a Good Ievel of Development (GLD) in the Early Years
Foundation Stage was in line with or above the national average in all but one academles EYFS is
a strength in the trust:

National - Baird Church- Dudley . Hollington Robsack - | .Sllverdale i WSL
(2017) ‘wood : : . : .
70.7 - 71 63 - . 80. ' 85 76 82 68.

Education developments ’
There was significant engagement with Ofsted durlng 2016/ 17: there were Ofsted inspections of

. six academies and an Ofsted monitoring visit to one academy Overall, the outcomes were very
positive, with four academies rated as Good overall with seven individual areas rated Outstanding.
In each of these inspections, the contribution of the Trust and its sponsor, the University of
Brighton, was commended and recognised as adding significant capacity to improve.

On 18 January 2017, Education Secretary Justine Greening announced that Hastings would be
one of six new Opportunity areas which will see local partnerships formed with early years -
providers, schools, colleges, universities, businesses, charities and local authorities to ensure all
children and young people have the opportunity to reach their fuil potential. There are now twelve
‘opportunity areas across the country and the initiative enables these areas to access a range of
-additional government funding: the Trust is working with a range of partners to develop projects
and activities that will impact on pupil outcomes with the support of this addrtlonal funding.

ln July 2017, the University of Brighton was recognised as one of only 16 (out of 48) multi academy
trust sponsors who have achieved above average on progress measures for disadvantaged
students. This follows The St Leonards Academy's Student Schools and Teachers Network
(SSAT) award for its exceptional 2016 performance, which shows that the academy was in the top
10% of schools natlonally for progress .

Pupil/student recruitment : _
In relation to the recruitment of Year 7 and Reception Year students/puplls to the Trust s
academies (for September 2017 entry), the number of applications received from parents
increased-on 2016 numbers, as have first choice preferences The majority of academles are
- oversubscribed, with waiting lists.

Key Emplo yment Performance Indicators

The Trustees recognise that the Trust has a broad base of actlvmes and the. quallty of staff and line
managers are critical to its success. The Trust therefore maintains effective recruitment and.
development policies to ensure rigorous recruitment and performance monitoring processes and
procedures are in place to provide employees with opportunities and support for personal
development

New teachers have continued to be recruited via Teach First, with several existing Teach First
teachers continuing to their third or fourth year of employment in the Trust's secondary academies.
The Trust's School Direct programme expanded in 2016/17 to include primary trainees as well as
" additional secondary trainees across a range of subjects. High quality Newly Qualified Teachers
have also continued to be recruited from a range of Initial Teacher Training providers, in particular
the University of Brlghton
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The Trust is strongly committed to providing high quality professional and career development
opportunities for.its staff, and a range of cross-Trust professional development programmes were
offered to staff in academies during 2016/17 in order to further develop their skills and expertise.
They included a bespoke leadership programme for new and aspiring middle leaders (eg heads of
subject or heads of key stages); and formal recognition for a group of outstanding teachers as the
trust s ‘Lead Practitioners’, who will lead coachlng and support for other teachers

' Equalmes diversity and dlsablllty are areas of great |mportance to the Trust. It is fundamental that
people are treated fairly and with respect and dignity. The Trust will not tolerate any discrimination,
victimisation or harassment.on the grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnerShip, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation. -

The Trust considers that effectlve communication with employees is essential. All-staff briefings
oceur at each academy on a weekly or more frequent basis and.regular management, curricular

- and federated team meetings occur to énable academy activities to be planned and managed in a
cohesive way and for best practice to be shared.

A Union Recognition Agreement has continued to be in place all year which establishes. a
framework for liaison with staff and union representatives. In line with this agreement, both local
and Trust Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) meetings took place during the year. A Staff Welfare
programme has been in place throughout the year providing a comprehensive support and
counselling service for all members of staff

Key Fmancral Performance Indicators
All.of the academies in the Trust achieved their operational targets within the budgets agreed at
~ the start of the year. )

~ With nine academies now in the Trust, a number of financial indicators will be used in the future to
assist Trustees in managing the Trust's financial affalrs to ensure efficient operatlon liquidity and
effectlve use of resource.

The ratio of staff related expenditure to mcome was 74.30% (79.01%'in 2015/1 6) which was within
the defined range (70 -80%). - :

Gomg Concern '
- After making appropriate enqumes the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectatlon that the
. Trust has adequate resources to continue. in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the gonng concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Pohcnes

Financial. Review

Fmancral Position
During the year grant income of £25.1 million (201 5/16: £27.5 million) was recelved for the-
achievement of the academles educational alms and objectives.

Included within grant income, Pupil Premium payments amounting to £2.523 million (2015/16 -
£2.157m) have been directly applied to the provision of additional support for disadvantaged
students. This support has been tailored to the individual educational, emotional and :
developmental needs of these students. An additional sum of £54.8k (2015/16 - £55k) for Year 7
students’ literacy and numeracy catch up premium funding to support students who did not achieve °
the expected standard in readmg and maths at the end of key stage 2 (KSZ)
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'Additional funds of £115k (2015/16 - £86.6k) have been generated from the letti’ng of academy
facilities for educational and communlty use and the provision of IT support services to local
‘primary schools.

Local Government Pensnon Scheme (LGPS) Adjustments (due to FRS102) amounted to a net gain

of £4.508 million, taking our Statutory Provision to £5.020 million. Pension contributions for

' 2016/17 are all fully included in the agreed budgets for staffing and this Provision does not create

~an additional cash burden. Parliament has agreed to a guarantee that, in the event of academy
closure, outstanding LGPS liabilities will be met by the Department for Educatlon The guarantee
came into force on 18 July 2013. . , .

Reserves Policy :
Academies are funded on a monthly basis by Department for Education (DfE) grants and income

fairly matches expenditure, with around 89.19% being spent on teaching and other staffing costs.

The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) previously set limits on the amount of the
General Annual Grant (GAG) that could be carried forward from one year to the next. With effect
from 2012, these limits were removed so that academy trusts have the freedom to keep money
aside for when it is needed most and to build up reserves, for example for long term capital
projects. The Trust has defined the reserves policy to ensure that sufficient funds are accumulated
to enable school buildings to be maintained and equipment and ICT assets renewed when required
- in the foreseeable future, as well ensuring that there are additional funds for school |mprovement
actnwty ‘and a general reserve to cover any cash flow requlrements : .

Maintaining a level of reserves |s essential as the academles have no recourse to any significant
income streams other than DfE -annual revenue and Multi Academies Trust Condition lmprovement
Funding. Annual devolved capital funding is now very small at £11.25 per pupil for primary
‘academies and £16.88 for secondary academies. .

Accounting for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) means the accounts recognise a
significant pension fund deficit within restricted funds, but this does not mean there is an immediate |
liability for this amount, rather it reflects the potentlal forincreases in employer pension

o contnbutlons in future years.

Investment Policy.
The Trust held no lnvestments durlng the year. An lnvestment policy has been developed and

approved

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is an ongoing process for |dent|fy|ng, evaluatlng and
managing the Trust's significant risks. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the Trust's system
of internal control-and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather
" than'to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Trust has developed comprehensive
financial and risk management policies which are in accordance with the recommendations laid:
down in the Academies Financial Handbook issued by the Educatlon and Skills Funding Agency
and in line with recognised good practlce

The Trust's Audlt and Resources Commlttee ensures that the Trust's operatlons and activities are
underplnned by sound internal financial control and risk management arrangements.

The Trust is.concerned to maintain and develop the academies wuthm the grant funding available
to them and has therefore established a process of setting annual budgets and operating a system
of budget momtormg and control. Decisions are informed by the’ Trust s Medlum Term Fmancnal

' Plan ~ -
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-A key risk relates to the reduction in government funding in current and future years, for example,
in relation to the Education Services Grant and pressures on funding for Nursery provision. The
Trust's cost base is being kept under review to ensure it can deal with variations, and strategies for
increasing non-government funding are being pursued, for example, re nursery provision, lettings
etc, as well as improved procurement arrangements. -Pay related increases outside of the Trust's
control, such as those related to pension and National Insurance contributions continue to pose a
risk-to the Trust and careful management of budgets is required to ensure that fundlng focuses on
supportlng the Trust's key priorities.

The Trust's pupil recruitment has improved over time with the majority of academles now being
oversubscribed. : :

Failure to secure or retain effective leadership and management, as well as potential threats to the
quality of teaching remain key risks. The Trust has developed and implemented a leadership
strategy which includes succession planning, as well as a peer review framework, alongside
Professional Partner input and a framework for continuing professional development to aid
retention and mitigate. these risks.

The Trust benefits from Multi Academy Trust Condition Improvement Funding which is used to
address the highest priority condition issues but is not sufficient to meet the needs of large capital
replacement projects. Alternative sources of funding are therefore sought where possible. The
Trust has a framework of Planned Preventatlve Malntenance to ensure effectlve maintenance of
the estate. :

In recognition of the need for effective and cost efficient finance to deliver improved decision
making, during 2016/17 an external review of the Trust's financial management arrangements and
procedures was commissioned. A series of recommendations for improvement are now belng
taken forward as part of a comprehensive change management programme

. The Trust’s safeguardlng policy and related checks and procedures mitigate any potentlal risk of a
serious safeguardlng incident.

'Plans for Future Periods

The Trust has set ambitious targets for the academic attainment and progress of pupils/students

attending the academies. These targets are measured against key indicators. In addition,

. improvement plans have been put in place to drive school improvement across the Trust. Intensive
- improvement plans have been developed in support of the Trust's most vulnerable academies. The -

“ Trust's Strategic Improvement Group, led by the Director of School Improvement, co-ordinates all
school improvement activities across the Trust, with a key. pnonty to increase internal capacity and
expertise, in support of school to school |mprovement

" Key priorities for lmprovement in the Trust's secondary academies during 2017/18 are to improve
student outcomes in maths and English language; to address consistency of performance across
the curriculum; and to improve the attendance of students. Key priorities for improvement in the
Trust's primary academies during 2017/18 are to increase the percentage of pupils who reach the
expected standard in reading, writing and maths combined at Key Stage 2. Strategies to i improve
attendance of puprls/students in all phases is also a priority. Central to achieving these priorities i is
to continue to improve the quahty of teachlng and learning for all students/puplls

The dellvery of the aforementloned change management programme to enhance the Trust's

financial management arrangements and procedures will be a key priority for the forthcoming year,
as will be the development of a new Medium Term Financial Plan, taking account of the outcomes
of the Natlonal Funding Formula.

v
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The overarching objective of financial management of the Trust will continue to be to achieve a
sound financial posmon and to operate WIthin the grant funding prowded by the Department for
Education.

The redevelopment of the Trust's values, vision and mission undertaken i in 2016/17 provndes the

~ basis for the development of a new strategic business plan, which is intended to support the
achievement of an agreed set of overarching objectives for the next five years by translating the

vision into strategy and then into actlon . :

.The recruitment-and retention of high quality staff are key to achieving these academic targets and .
~ plans, and it is the intention to develop a comprehensive recruitment and retention strategy during

. 2017/18. The Trust will continue to implement its Leadership .and Professional Development
-Strategy which supports colleagues at all levels in their career development and facilitates
succession planning and talent spotting across the Trust. In support of the recruitment of new
_teachers, the Trust will continue to work with its lead sponsors, the University of Brighton, in
developing and establishing initial teacher training programmes, mcluding its School Direct training
programme :

Auditor

~ ‘Insofar as the Trustees are aware: N
’ -e There is no relevant audit information of which the Trust's auditor is unaware and
e The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor i is aware of that
information. :

A resolutlon proposing that WllkInS Kennedy LLP be reappomted as ‘auditor of the charitable '
company will be put to the members ‘

The Trustees'’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order.of the Board of
Trustees as the Company Directors on 14'December 2017 and.signed on the Board's behalf by: ‘

Proessor ristopher Pole Dr John Smith
Chair - T - Interim Chief Executive and Accountlng Officer
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< Governance Statement for the year ended 31 August 2017
Scope of Responsnblllty A '

-~ As _Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the University of
Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academiés Trust) has an effective and appropriate
system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the.risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or |oss

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsnblllty to the Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety

and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities
assigned to it in the funding agreement between the University of Brighton Academies Trust
(formerly Hastings Academies Trust) and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive
is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns

“in mternal ‘control.

Governance

. The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report
and in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met six
times during the 2016/17 year. Attendance durlng the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees -
was as follows:

Trustee ' Meetings attended Out of a possible
Arthur Copple (appointed 7/11/16) 5 |5 A
Kenneth Ebenezer (appointed 13/3/17) 1 2
Jill Elizabeth Gray 5 6
Lorraine Harrison (appointed 1/9/17) - -
Christopher Kirkness (appointed 1/9/17) - -
Steven Manwaring 3 6
Professor Christopher Pole (Chair) 6 6
Dr John Smith (Interim Chief Executive 3 3

| and Accountmg Officer) (appointed .
A7)
Janey Walker (appomted 1/9/17) - -
Mark Whitby (appointed 20/3/17) 2 2 7 - -
Alexander Campbell (resigned 8/2/17) - | 1 3
Clive Cooke (resigned 31/8/17) 1 6
Julian Davies (resigned 5/10/16) - -
Paul Evans (resigned 31/8/17) - 3 -6
Paul Griffiths (Chief Executive and 2 3
Accounting Officer) (resigned 31/12/16)
Helen Hart (resigned 26/4/17) 3 4
Amber Rudd MP (resigned 13/3/17) 0 4
Peter Savage (resigned 31/8/17) 1 6

‘| David Standen (resigned 31/8/17) 0 6
Margaret Wallis (resigned 31/8/17) 3 6

: Dunng 2016/17 the constitution of the Board of Trustees was rewewed as part of the ‘overarching
major review of the Trust's governance structure, to be implemented from 1/9/17 (this was
completed in conjunction with a proposal to merge the University.of Brighton Academies Trust and
the Hastings Academies Trust). The revised constitution is smaller to enable the Board to be more
cohesive and dynamic. Specifically, the new constitution of the Board is compnsed of up to nine
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trustees appomted by the sponsor (Umversﬂy of Brlghton) and the trust's Chief Executlve Skl"S
focused recruitment of some new Trustees was undertaken with several new Trustees joining the
Board during the year; this also provided the opportunity to review skills and expertise against the
DfE’ s Competency Framework for Governance. :

" The related review of the Trust s Scheme of Delegatlon completed durlng 2016/17 provides greater
clarity regarding roles and respon3|b|I|t|es and the removal of duplicate responsibilities from '
1/9/17. : '

The aforementloned review and redevelopment of the Trust's values, vision and mission confrrmed
many of the Trust’s underpinning principles, and also introduced clearer expectatlons about ways
of working, bulldmg on and strengthening existing practice, including strengthened accountability;
collective responsibility across the trusts and all academies for the outcomes of all students;
deployment of the best staff to benefit the most students; greater transparency; articulation of ‘non- .
negotiables’; elimination of dupllcatlon and improved cross trust communication.

The overarching review of the Trust’s governance structure aimed to maximise efficiencies and
minimise duplication; provide absolute clarity regarding accountability; ensure complete
transparency in roles and responsibilities; promote the principle of shared responsibility for the
outcomes of all children and young people; ensure that governance structures reflect the flexibility
of executive structures;-ensure that colleagues contributing to the governance of the trust are
highly skilled and experienced; consider the ways in which the governance structure can more
strongly link to the academies’ local communities; and improve commumcatlons across the trust.

From 1/9/17 under the revised arrangements the Board of Trustees will be supported by four
specialist committees (Education & Standards; Finance & Resources; Risk & Audit; and.
Remuneration & HR), a Local Board for each academy or group of academies (with responsnbllltles
including the academy’s vision & strategic plan, community engagement and pupil wellbeing) and a
. formally constituted Chairs Forum (comprising trustees and local board chairs).

A Trust Self Evaluation has been completed, using the South .East and South London Regionai
Schools Commissioner's suggested template. This and the review of the skills & experience of
- Trustees against the DfE’'s Competency Framework for Governance will be completed annually. .

The Audit and Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees. Its purpose
from a resources perspective is to assist the decision making of the Board of Trustees, by enabling
more detailed consideration to be given to the best means of fulfilling the Board of Trustees'"
responS|b|I|ty to ensure sound management of each academy's finance and resources, including
proper planning, monitoring and probity. It also makes appropriate comments and
-recommendations.on such matters to the Board of Trustees on a regular basis and to refer major
issues to a Board of Trustees meeting for ratification. The committee’s purpose from an audit
perspective is to ensure that the operation of the Trust is underpinned by sound internal financial
control and risk management arrangements. The Audit and Resources Committee met five times
during 201_6/1 7. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee ‘| Meetings attended Out of a possible
Michael Bewlock (Non-Trustee member) ' : ' '
| Arthur Copple (appointed 7/11/16)

Paul Evans (resigned 31/8/17)

Helen Hart (resigned 26/4/17)

Paul Griffiths (for Resources items)-
“(Chief Executive and Accounting Officer)
(resigned 31/12/16)

‘Alan Matthews (Non-Trustee member) 5 ' , 5

= IN{w|A|w
N|wo|o|;
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Dr John Smith (for Resources items) 3 : 3
Interim Chief Executive and Accountmg
Officer) (appointed 1/1/17)

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust-delivers -
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for
money refers to the educational and wnder soc1eta| ‘outcomes achieved in return for taxpayer
resources recelved

The Accountlng Officer. consnders how the Trust's use of resources has provided good value for

- money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money
_ can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accountlng Officer

for the Trust has delivered improved value for money dunng the year by

Undertakmg the merger of the University of Brighton Academies Trust and the Hastlngs
Academies Trust with effect from 1/9/17 (both trusts are led by the same sponsor, the
University of Brighton; there are existing shared management and central support services and
a shared school improvement strategy). There are a number of benefits of merging the two
trusts, which include: (i) the opportunity to collaboratively develop a clear vision and mission for

" the trusts; (i) a more efficient govérnance model (which avoids duplicate Boards of Directors

and Sub-Committees); (jii) reduced statutory reporting requirements (including annual

. accounts, ESFA returns and Companies House returns); (iv) the establishment of a single.

central management budget will reduce the need for inter-trust financial processing and
preparation of separate budgets; and provide more opportunity for financial investments; (v) .
increased purchasing power, and a reduction in the number of individual contracts, thereby
increasing value for money; (vi) the’ opportunity to develop a more coherent marketing and

. communications strategy (internal and external); (vii) the opportunity to free capacity of existing
members of staff to focus on their core responsibilities and take forward other areas of work
essential to future developments and (viii) maX|m|sat|on of school |mprovement capacrty
across the trusts

Relatedly, undertaking a review of the two trusts’ governance arrangements, to be
. implemented from 1/9/17, which will realise a number of benefits, including: (i) the opportunity-
to minimise and remove duplication (and thereby free capacity) between governance and the
executive, and between the different levels of governance; (ii) provision of greater clarity about -
roles and responsibilities; (iii) removal of the dual accountability of principals; (iv) reduced
‘complexity of the governance structure, which in turn facilities more effective / decisive / rapid
decision making; and (v) the opportunity to strengthen and i lmprove Iinks with iocal

© communities.

Providing opportunities for the Trust’s most senior leaders to impact on improvements in other
Trust academies; for example, the Principal of West St Leonards Primary Academy and Vice
Principal of Silverdale Primary Academy have provided leadership support to Dudley Infant
Academy. This has provided opportunities for sharing good practice and staff expertlse

- promoting consustency and establishing robust systems and protocols

Continuing to maximise Iinks with the Trust s lead sponsor the UnlverS|ty of Bnghton Th|s has
_included the provision of specialist financial and legal advice, as well as supporting a range of
eduCationaI initiatives such as cross-Trust continuing professional development activities-

Supporting a number of major cross Trust procurement activities, such as the appomtment of a

new catering provider (which will generate £250,000 of income over a three year perlod) and
the appomtment of new uniforms providers.
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The Purpose of the System of Inte‘rnaI'Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to "
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of Trust policies,
aims and objectives, to- evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
. they-be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
-internal control has been in place in Trust for the year to 31 August 2017 and up to the date of -
approval of the annual report and financial statements. . :

‘Capacity to Handle Risk-

The Board of Trustees has revrewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, ‘
_ evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31
" August 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and fi nancral statements. Th|s
process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees. .

~ The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of mternal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and-accountability. In particular, it includes: _
e Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and perlodlc
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
"o Regular reviews by the Audit & Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capltal works and expenditure
_programmes '
‘Setting targets to measure financial and other performance
Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) gurdehnes
Delegation of authority and segregation of duties .
Identification and management of risks -

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has

- appointed East Sussex County Council to provide internal audit support. This role includes giving
-advice on.financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial systems. The
Audit & Resources Committee received reports on the operation of the systems of control from the
internal auditors during the financial year; for example, a report of an audit of the Accounts '
Receivable System was received and considered in autumn 2016. As a result of this work the
auditor - was able to provide minimal assurance over the key controls in place within the accounts
receivable system. - Although the audit did show some good practice at academies across the
Trust, particularly where academies had made good use of online payments systems, there were
still a number of issues that needed to be resolved to ensure robust controls are in place to protect
income received and ensure income is accurately recorded.in the financial accounts. An action
plan has been put in place to ensure that these improvements are made. The mternal audit
service was delivered to the specrfrcatlon provided.

Durlng 2016/17 Delortte was commissioned to undertake a review of the Trust's financial
“management arrangements and procedures; the recommendatlons arising from this are now being
~implemented in a comprehensive change management project (18 months). A new single central
bank account has been established, and the Trust's finance system has been updated: this will

. improve the quality and timeliness of financial monitoring information to inform strategic decisions.
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Revnew of Effectnveness

As Accounting-Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the

. system of internal control. During the year in questlon the review has been informed by:

e The work of the internal auditor

e The work of the external auditor

e The work of the executive managers within the Trust who have respons:blllty for the
development and mamtenance of the mternal control framework.

- The Accountmg Officer has been advised of the implications of the result- of their review of the

system of internal control by the Audit & Resources Committee and a pIan to address weaknesses
and-ensure continuous improvement of the system isin place

Approved by 6rd_er of the Board of Trustees on 14 Decerhber 2017 and signed on itsﬁehalf 'by:

Professor Christopher Pole
Chair
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‘Statement on Regularlty Proprlety and Compllance for the
year ended 31 August 2017 |

‘As Accountmg Officer of the Umversnty of.Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies
Trust) | have considered my responsibility to notify the Board of Trustees and the Education and
Skills Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms
and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the University of Brighton
. Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust) and the Secretary of State for Education. As
part of my consnderatlon | have had due regard to the requurements of the Academles Financial

: Handbook '

, I conflrm that | and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any materlal irregular or improper use -
of funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook. '

_ | confirm that no instances of maténal irregularity, impropriety or funding non- combliance have
been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of th|s statement, these will .
~ be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

DrJ Smith .
Interim Accounting Officer .
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- Statement of Trustees Responsrbrlltles for the year ended
31 August 2017 - |

The Trustees (who act as trustees for the University of Brighton Academies Trust [formerly .
Hastings Academies Trust] and are also the directors of the University of Brighton Academies
Trust [formerly Hastings Academies Trust] for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Requirements issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountlng Practlce) and applicable .
-law and regulatlons '

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under -
" company law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
-they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Trust and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In prepanng these
financial statements, the Trustees are requrred to: '

Select suitable‘accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
- Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and .
e Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to
presume that the Charitable Company will contrnue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accountrng records that are sufficient to show
and explain the charitable company transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Trust and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Trust and hence for takrng reasonable steps for the preventlon and detection of fraud and other
|rregular|t|es : :

The Trustees are responsrble for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Trust applles

- financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsmle for ensunng grants recelved from the ESFA/DfE
. have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Charitable Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom -
governing the preparation and dissemination.of financial statements may differ from Ieglslatlon in
other jurisdictions. :

Approved by order of the'Board of Trustees on 14 December 2017 and signed on its benalf by:

' Professor Christopher Pole ~ Dr John Smith S
Chair : . Interlm Chief Executlve and Accountlng Oft" icer
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Unlversrty of Brlghton Academles Trust (formerly Hastlngs Academies Trust)

"Independent Audrtors Report to the Members of University
of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academres
'Trust) |

.Opmlon.

We have audited the financial statements of University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly
Hastings Academies Trust) (the 'Academy Trust') for the year ended 31 August 2017 which '
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
.The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is-applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction’
2016 to 2017 |ssued by the Education and Skrlls Funding Agency. A

In our opinion the financial statements »
 give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2017
and of its incoming resources and -application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for the year then ended,;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with Unrted Klngdom Generally Accepted
. Accounting Practice;
e have been prepared in accordance with the requrrements of the Companies Act 2006; and
‘e have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academles
Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017. : :

‘Basis for opmlon

We conducted our audrt in accordance wrth Iinternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the :
'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statemenits in the UK, including the FRC'’s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have ‘nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters in relatron to which the ISAs (UK)
_require us to report to you where:
e the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accountrng in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or ,

‘e the trustees have not disclosed in the fmancral statements any |dent|fred material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to -
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the

-date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the.
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
-except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon .

Page 25 of 58



University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other =~~~
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

" the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material _
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other mformatlon we are
required to report that fact. : :

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions- on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
+ the information given in the Trustees' Report including the incorporated strategic report for
the financial year for which the fmancral statements are prepared is consistent with the
. financial statements; and
e the Trustees' Report including the incorporated ‘strategic report has been prepared in
"~ accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

. Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained
- in the course of the audit, we have not identified material mlsstatements in the Trustees' Report,
- including the incorporated strategic report.

We have nothlng to report in respect of the foIIowrng matters m relatlon to which the Companies
Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the mformatlon and explanatlons we require for our audit.

Responsrbllltres of trustees A

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees are responsrble
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of flnancral statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

. In preparing the financial statements,,the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy

- trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

~ concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either mtend to
liquidate the Academy Trust, or have no realistic alternatlve but to do so. ‘

Auditor's responsrblllties for the audlt of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's -
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material -
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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. for and on behalf of Wilkins Kennedy LLP ...

University of B‘rightoh’Acade‘mie's Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

A further description of ourlresponsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This

description forms part of our auditor's report.

. Use of our report

This report’is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Academy Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and the Academy Trust's
members asa body, for our audit work for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Michelle Wilkes (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Statutory Auditor o
Chartered Accountants ' Greytown House
T - 221-227 High Street -

Orpington
Kent
BR6 ONZ
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to University of Brighton Academies Trust
(formerly Hastings Academies Trust) and the Education and
Skills Fundmg Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 26 May 2017 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by University of Brighton
Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust) during the period 1 September 2016 to 31
August 2017 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies
Trust) and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings
Academies Trust) and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)
and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

" Respective responsibilities of University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings
Academies Trust)'s accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of University. of Brighton Academies
Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)'s funding agreement with the Secretary of State for
Education dated 10 March 2010 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September
20186, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our
engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017. We
report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests
that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1
September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or
that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2016 to
2017 issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us ‘with sufficient appropnate evidence to express
a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurarice engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.
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Our engagement includes examlnatlon ona test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
- propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure. :

Our work included |dentmcat|on and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the

controls, policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the = .

- framework of authorities including high level financial control areas and areas assessed of
presenting a higher risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed testing, based on our assessment of :

risk of material |rregulanty, where such controls, policies and procedures apply to classes of

transactions. This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent

. evidence from the conduct of that audit supports the regularity conclusion as well as addltronal
testing based on.our assessment of rlsk of material irregularity. :

Conclusron ‘
In the course of our work nothrng has come to our attention whrch suggests that in all matenal

respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2016 to
31 August 2017 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the fmancral

' transactlons do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
Repo,. ,.Accountant L
v erkms Kennedy LLP

Dated ‘%/12'//7
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (fo_rmerly Haétings Academies Trust)

Statement of FlnanCIaI Activmes for the year ended 31 August 2017

Including Income and Expendlture Account A

Income and endowments from:

. Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations
- Funding for teaching school
Other trading activities '
Investments

Total income and endowments’
Expenditure on:

" Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

- Teaching school A

Total expenditure

Net income/(expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains and losses

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes ’ :

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

- Total funds carried forward

Notes

24

(3.}

- 24

19

Unrestricted

Restricted funds:

Funds . General Fixed asset
£'000 £'000 “£'000
486 - - 612
4 . 25547 -
- 124 -
442 875 -
B . )
939 26,546 612
988 28,627 '993
.- 124 -
988 28,751 993
(49) (2,205) ° (381)
(295) - - 907" (612)
- 5,803 -
(344) . 4505 . (993) .
3,612 (9,525) 66,952
165,959

3,268 (5,020)
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" Total

. Total

64,207

2017 12016
£'000 £'000

© 1,098 217
- 25,551 - 27,164
124 -
1,317 87

7 24
28,097 27,492
30,608 29,949
124 S
30,732 29,949
(2,635) - (2.457)
5,803 (4,252)
3,168~ (6,709)
61,039 . 67,748
61,039




UnlverSIty of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastmgs Academles Trust)

Statement of FlnanC|aI Activities for the year ended 31 August 2017
(Continued)

_ Includlng Income and Expendlture Account’

Total

Comparative year information ) - Unrestricted .~ Restricted funds:
Year ended 31 August 2016 » : ~ Funds General Fixed asset 2016
. ' , ' th_es : £'000 £'000 - £'000 -£'000
Income and endowments from: ' ' ' _ I
Donations and capital grants - T 42 175 ’ - 217
. Charitable activities: S ‘ o o , '
- Funding for educational operatlons 4 715 26,449 B 27,164 -
Other trading activities S - 5 " .87 . - .87
Investments B o 6 - - _ 24 _ - 24
Total income and-endowments S ‘ 844 26,648 < 27492
‘Exbenditure on:
Charitable actjvities: ' . .
- Educational operations 8 - A 775 27,919 1,255 29,949
Total expenditure S R 775 27,919 1255 29,949
Net incomel(expenditure) A T ’ 69 : (1,271)‘ (1 ,‘255)‘ (2,457)
- Other recognised gains and losses ) .
Actuarial losses on defi ned ‘benefit pension 19 - - (4,252) - = (4,252)
schemes : i B ‘
Net movement in funds ' .' . ' o 69 (5,523) (1,255) (6,709)
Reconciligtion of funds . . : ‘ .
- Total funds brought-forward _ o 3,543 . (4,002) 68,207 67,748
61,039

Total funds carried forward . . - : 3.612 (9,525) 66,952
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings A‘cademies. Trust) :

Balance sheet as at 31 August "201‘7

2017 2016
Notes | £'000 - “£'000 £'000 .£'000
. Fixed assets : L :
Tangible assets S12 65,959 66,952
Current assets - . .
Debtors , 13 1,119 1,108
‘Cash at bank and in hand ' 5,006 5,319
6,125 6,427
Current liabilities .
Creditors: amounts falling due within. one - 14 (2,857) (2,812)
. year ' '
Net current assets: . 3,268 3,615 -
Net assets excluding pension liability 69,227 . 70,567
Defined benefit pensibn liability 19 (5,020) (9,528) l
Net assets 64,207 61,039
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds YA
- Fixed asset funds 65,959 66,952
- Restncted income funds - -3
" - Pension reserve (5,020) " (9,528)
Total restricted funds 60,939 57.427
Unrestricted income funds 17 3,268 3612
Total funds 64,207 -

- 61,039

The financial statements set out on pages 30 to 58 were approved by the board of trustees and authorlsed for issue
on 14 December 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

* Professor Christopher Pole -

" Dr John Smith

-Chair ’ . : . Interlm Chief Executlve and Accountmg Officer
: . - : Company Number- 07185046
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UnlverS|ty of Brlghton Academles Trust (formerly Hastings Academles Trust)

'- 'A Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2017

2017 o 2016

'Notes . £'000 ) £'000 - £'000 - £000
Caeh flows from operating activities . , A .
Neét cash used in-operating activities _ 20 - - . . (932) : ’ < (345)
Cash flows from investing activites ~ - _

. Dividends, interest and rents from investments _ 7 S 24
Capital grants from DfE and ESFA . : ' . 612 ) 127
P ‘ 619 L e 151

Change in cash and cash equlvalents in the R '_ . (313) ) : . ’ (194)
reportmg period ' . _ o
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2016 , S . . 5319 . ' 5,513
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2017 R 5,006 . S 5,_3191
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Unrversrty of Brighton Academres Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

 Notes to the accounts for the. year ended 31 August 201 7 (contrnued)

Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accountrng policies

-A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applred consrstently, except where

noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertarnty, is set.out below.

Basis of preparation’

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in-accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Repubilic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 rssued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastrngs Academres Trust) meets the definition of a public
benefit entity under FRS 102.

Gorng concern '

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is approprrate ie whether there are any mater|a|
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Thus
they COntinue~to adopt the going concern.basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognrsed when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is

* probable and the amount can be measured relrably

. Grants recervable

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a recervable basrs The balance of income

) received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the

balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitiement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent amounts

-of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are

recognised when.there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended .

_Swmm

Sponsorship income provrded to the academy trust which amounts to a donatron is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance related
conditions), where the recerpt rs probable and it can be measured reliably. '

Donatrons

‘Donations are recognrsed ona recervable basis (where there are no performance-related condrtrons) where

" the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured:

Other income

Other income, .including the hire of facilities, is recognrsed in the period it rs receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provrded the goods or services.

"Donated goods, facilities and services
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Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contlnued)

1.4

1.5

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock.is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are .not recognised in the financial statements
until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’. '

" Donated fi xed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure thls rellably, in which case
the.cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a

-corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful

economic life i in accordance with the academy trust‘s accounting policies.

Expendlture

Expenditure is recognised.once there is a legal or constructive obllgatlon to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably. )

Expenditure is cIassnﬂed by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and .
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a -
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a

“basis consistent with the'use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of ttme spent, and

depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's. use.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
pendtture on rausmq funds

This'includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charltable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities _ ‘
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs

_relating to the governance of the academy trust appo:rtioned to charitable activities.

Governance costs
These include the costs attributable to the academy trust's compllance with constitutional and statutory
requwements including audit, strategic management, trustees' meetings and reimbursed expenses.

Tangible fixed assets and deprematnon . :
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost net of
depreciation and any provision for lmpalrment .

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired W|th the aid of specuf c grants either from.the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreclated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued'
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities -and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been -

‘acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows: .

Land and buildings . 125 years , Land is not depremated

Computer equipment ‘ © ' 3-10years
Fixtures, fittings & equipment - 5 years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
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'Notes to_ the accounts for the year end‘ed 31 August 2017 (continued)

16

1.7

1.8

t
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognlsed as impairments. Impairment |osses are recognrsed in
the statement of ﬁnancral activities. .

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation ‘at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event rt
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount of the

“settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust

anticipates it will pay. to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of
services it must provrde .

Leasing commitments
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight line basrs over the period
of the lease.

Financial instruments

.The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basrs are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basrc financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised

. cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

1.9

1.10

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is. measured at face value.

Financial Irabllrtles :

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at’ amortrsed cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial Ilabllrty as the cash settlement has already taken place and

"there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxatlon :

The academy trust is consrdered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Frnance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, -
the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992 to the extent that such income or gains are applred excluswely to charitable
purposes .

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined beneft schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level

percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government

Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in note 19,

the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit

-accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accountrng purposes and the

. contributions are recognlsed in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equrvalent to

the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.

The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The

. 'amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions,

benefit changes, settlements and-curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
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| Notes. to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contmued)

discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the mterest income on the scheme assets and the’
actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarlal gains and
losses are recognlsed immediately in other recognlsed gams and losses.

. 1.11 Fund accounting
. Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
" charitable objects of the academy trust at the dlscretlon of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specmc capital purposes lmposed by
: funders where the asset acqurred or created i is held for a specrﬁc purpose

Restncted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants. from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

2 . Critical accounting estlmates and areas of judgement
Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and
other factors, including expectatrons of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the
cnrcumstances .

Critical accountlng estimates and. assumgtton
The academy trust makes estimates and.assumptions concernlng the future. The resulting accounting

estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and Irabrhtles wuthm the next financial year are discussed below. :

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptrons usedin
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability- at 31 August 2017. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of '|udgement

_Useful economic lives of tangible assets .
The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic
lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed
annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological .
.advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 12
for the carrying-amount of the property plant and equlpment and note 1.6 for the useful economlc lives for
each class of assets.

Bad debts
" Debtors are regularly reviewed for recoverability, any debts which in the opinion of management are not
recoverable are provided for as a specific bad debt .

" There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
_ and liabilities within the next financial year
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* Notes to the accounts for the year ehded 31 AUgusi 2017 (ciontinued) |

3 Donations and capital grént's
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Total

217 .-

4

Unrestricted Restricted - - Total
funds funds - 2017 2016
£'000 - £000 £'000 £'000
Capital grants - 612 612 127
- Other donations 486 - 486 90
. 486 612 1,098
: -4 * Funding for the academy trust's educational operations A
Unresfrictéd - Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2017 . 2016
' £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
. DfE/ESFA grants ‘ '

" General annual grant (GAG) - 21,594 21,594 21,428
Start up grants } . - - 5 5 .
Other DfE / ESFA grants - - 2,775 2,775 -3,161

. 24,374 24,374 24,593
" Other government gfants‘ o . :

Local authority grants - 1,173 1,173 1,136

Other funds - :
. Other incoming resources 4 - : - 1,435
Total funding 4 25,547 +25,551 27,164

"5 . Oﬁhei trading activities : . . )

' ‘ T Unrestricted = Restricted Total ' Total
- funds funds 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 "£'000
Hire of facilities - S 115 . 115~ 87

" Nursery v 221 - - n.221 -
School to school support - 856 856 -
Other income . 106 19 125 -

-442 875 1,317 - 87
6  Investment income L .
- "~ Unrestricted . Restricted ‘Total Total -
funds funds 2017 2016
- £'000 £"000A _ _£'000 £'000
Short term deposits 7 - 7

24




_ University of Brighton Acadehies Trust (forrher_ly Héstings Academies Tru.st)'_'
Notes to vthe_accounts for the year ended 31 August 201 7-(contihUed‘)

¢

.7 Expenditure - ' = L
' R ’ Staff  Premises . Other Total ~  Total -

costs & equipment costs 2017 2016
£000 £000 £'000 £'000° " £'000
Academy's educational operations . : - L o
" -Directcosts ' 18,490 498 1,653 21,641 21,223
_ - Allocated support costs o 4,863 . -3,031 . . 2,073 9,967 - 8,726 .
Teaching school - : ' " ‘ ' -
~ - Direct costs A 69 e 39 108 ‘ -
- Allocated support costs ] -8 B -8 : 6.
023430 3529 3,773 30,732. . 29,949
Net incon"lel(exp'enditure) for the year includes: _ - o207 : 2016
: T - ' £'000 © £'000
Fees payable to auditor for: : , : . ' o
SAudit ‘ - ‘ - : 27 38
- Other services ' o N -
" . Operating lease rentals . o ’ - ' 136 : 104,
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets . ’ Ce . _ 993 . 1,255 -
‘Net interest on defined benefit pension liability. - L o 212 - 185
Central services o ' . -,

The academy trust has provided the following central services t@_its. academies during the year:A

- Human resources
Financial services .
Estates Management
Educational Support Services .
‘Leadership and Governance

The academy trust charges for these serv'ices'onAthe following basis:

*  6.15% of General Annual Grant (GAG)
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Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contlnued)

T Expenditure

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: ' o ‘ . ' : . Total
‘ B . £000
The Baird Primary Academy o . o : 97
Churchwood Primary Academy S : A , o S . 56
Dudley Infant Academy » o I R .. 47
Hollington Primary Academy- . *. ‘ : , - . 95 |
‘Robsack-Wood Primary - o g S ‘ 4 . .92,
Academy : o ’ } R i o
Silverdale Prlmary Academy . ; : ) . : : 135
‘West St Leonards Primary - ) . ' : ) : 89
- Academy ] . ) ’ ’ L
The Hastings Academy ) ) : o . ] 386
~ The St Leonaids Academy _ B g S A . 585

. Central services

1,582

'8 - Charitable activities AR - oo
: _Unrestricted . Restricted " Total -  Total
funds . funds 2017 - 2016
£'000 ~ £'000 "£'000 - £'000
" Direct costs - educational operaﬁons . . 349 ‘20,2"924 20,641. 4 21,223 ‘
Direct costs - teaching school g : - ' 108 ~ 108 -
‘Support costs - educational operations ) . 839 9328 = 9967 8,726
Support costs — teaching school - ) - 16 16 ‘
988 29,744 30,732 " 29,949
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| Notes toﬁthé accouhts‘ for the year ended 31 August 2017 (cbnti_nued)

.8

Charitable activities

Analysis of costs

Direct cdsts

Teaching and educatiohal suppoit staff costs

Staff development _
Depreciation and amortisation
Educational supplies and services
Examination fees ‘
Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Supp,o‘rt costs

" Support staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Technology costs

Recruitment and support

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

" Energy costs -

Rent and rates
Insurance

Security and transport
Catering

Finance costs

Other support costs
Governance costs -

‘Teaching

- School
£'000

67
2

39

16 -

- Page-41 of 58

Educational

operations
£'000

18,160
330
498
976
123

358.

196

20,641

4,842
495
554

98
1,476

296

314
214
231
71
734
212

166

9,967

264"

 Total’

2017

£000

18,227
332
498

1,015
123
358

196

20,749

4,850
495
554

98

. 1,476

296
314
214
231

71

734
212
272

166

9,983

Total -
2016

£'000 .

17,801
221

499
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University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trustl

Notes t6 the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

Staff costs

2017 - 2016

£'000 © " £000
Wages and salaries N 16,465 116,528
Social security costs - | 1,479 1,223
Operating costs of defined benefit penS|on schemes o : - .3,821 ' 2,687
Apprentlcesh|p Ievy _ : 4 A . * 35 -
Staff costs ' e - ' 21,800 . 20,438
Supply staff costs ' A ‘ . 945 988
Key Management Staff - ' : . o o .265 289 .
Staff restructuring costs - . . o o 71 ' - 59
Staff development and other staff costs .. ) 330 : 221
Total staff expenditure - - . 23441 21,995 .

B Staff numbers ' o '

The average number of persons, by headcount employed by the academy trust dunng the year was as follows: - '

2017 2016

Number Number

. Teachers ' ' R A . 260 . 283
Administration and support : - ' : 516 : 558
Management i , ' : ‘ o 14 -7
790 " 858

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludlng employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000
was:

2017 . 2016

Number . Number’

£60,001 - £70,000 g 3

" £70,001 - £80,000 3 . -
£80,001 - £90,000 2 -

£100,001 - £110,000 . I o A s 1
£110,001 - £120,000 -

1
-

Non statutorylnon-contractual staff severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non—contractual ‘severance payments totalllng £71k

'(2016 £59k). Indrwdually, the payments were: £25k, £13k, £11k, £8k £7k, £7k.

Key management personnel : :

The key management personnel of the ‘academy trust comprlse the trustees and the senior management -
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and national insurance ) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust is -
paid via our sponsor (refer to note 22 Related Party Transactions) was £265k (2016: £289k).
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1

12

13

Notes to the accdunts for the year e’n‘ded 31 August 201‘7 (continued)

Trustees' remuneratlon and expenses : Y

“Trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses from the Academy Trust in respect of thelr role
_as Trustees. During the period ended 31 August 2017 expenses totalllng £1k (2016: £1k) were reimbursed

or paid dlrectly to 4 trustees (2016: 2).

‘ 'Trustees and officers insurance :
In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased msurance to protect

Directors (Trustees) and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whllst .
on academy trust business. The insurance provudes cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. Itiis not - .

possible to quantify the trustees and officers' mdemnlty element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme

Tanglble fixed assets

‘Land and Combuter Fixtures, ~ Total
buildings equipment fittings &'
’ eauioment -
. £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
. Cost . ‘ ' - ‘ - o
At 1 September 2016 and 31 August 2017 67,480 . 2,937 . 1,419 . ~'71',8‘36
 Depreciation o ' :

- At 1.September 2016 v . S .1432 - 2530 922 4,884
Charge for the year g : 499 217 . 277 - 993
At 31 August 2017 - 1,931 2747 . 1199 5877

. Net book value c o g
At 31 August 2017 o : 65,549 190 220 . 65959
At 31 August2016 o L 66,048 407 . 497 66,952

Land valued at £5,172k is included within land and buildings and is not depreciated. ‘

Debtors . c S 2017 . . 2016
: ' ' £'000 £'000
Trade debtors 4 S 59 . 69
VAT recoverable o _ - " ‘ . 297 - 306
Other debtors - ‘ . _ _ N : 669 584
Prepayments and accrued income : ' R _ © 94 149
1,119 - ° 1,108
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- University of Brighton 'Aca‘demies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

‘Notes to the éccounts for the year ,ende,d,31‘ August 2017 (continued)

' 14 Creditors:iamoﬁnts félling due within one yeaf B » . 2017 - 2016
. ‘ ' £'000. , £'000
' Trade Greditors < I o _ 13 303
Other taxation and social securlty . ’ ) . - 1355 - . 369
Other creditors S - - 353 . 408
’ Accruals and deferred i mcome . ’ ) ) 2,136 . 1,732
2857 2,812
15  Deferred income - - S 2007 - 2016
. ' L S ' . K : : ' £'000 ~£'000 -
Deferred income is included within: ' ' _ ‘
Creditors due within one year . . _ o 1,198 .976
Deferred income at 1 September 2016 - A S 976 348
Released from previous years : - . ©o(976) . " (348)
Amounts deferred in the year . ‘ : 1,198 - . .976
Deférred income at 31 August 2017 : .7 1,108 976

s T —

At the Balance Sheet date the Trust was holding funds received in advance for UIFSM, Rates Relief, Pré .
School Opening grants, Sponsorship Capacity grant, Growth Fund, High Needs Top up Fundlng, Early Years
Advance and Reg|onal grants for-2017/18 academlc year. .

16 . Fmancnal instruments

e 2017 - 2016
o _ . - £'000 £'000
Carrying amount of financial assets ) v .
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost - . - 1,026 . 959
Carrying amount of financial liabilities . . ] '
Measured at amortised cost S . , . 1,659 - 1,836
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- Notes t.‘o' the accounts for the year eﬁnded 31 August 2017 (continued) -

17

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant

Start up grants

Other DfE / ESFA grants.
Other government grants
Teaching school

Other restricted funds

‘Funds excluding pensions

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

. DfE / ESFA capital grants
" Private sector capital

sponsorship .

: Total restricted funds

_Unrestricted funds
“General.funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 September
2016 Income
£'000 £000
3 21,504
- ' 5
- 2,775
- 1,173
. 124
. 875
3 26,546
(9,528) -
(9,525) 26,546
' - 612
66,952 -
66,952 612
57,427 27,158
3,612 . 948
61,039 128,097 .
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Gains,

‘losses and
-Expenditure transfers

- £'000 £'000

(22,504) . 907

. (®) -
(2,775) .

1473 -

(124), -

" (875) . . .
(27,456) 907 .
(1,205) 5803 .

(28,751) 6,710
L 812

(993) .

(993) 612)
(29,744) 6,098 °
(988) (295)
(30,732) 5,803

Balance at

31 August.
2017
£'000




University of Brighton Academies. Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust)

Notes to the 'acc'o'unts for the year ended'_3»1‘ August 2017 (continued) .

17

Funds

The specrf ic purposes for WhICh the funds are to be applred are as follows
Restrlcted General Funds : Co '
General'‘Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which Is to be used for the normal runmng costs of the

’ Academy |ncIud|ng education and support costs.

Start up grants - includes start up. grants received from the ESFA- o

Other DfE / ESFA grants includes grants from the ESFA / DfE in. relatlon to rates relief, pup|l premlum -

"~ UIFSM and Year 7 catch up

" Other government grants- includes grants from LEA mamly for Early Years Education Entltlement (EYEE) for

Nursery and High needs fundmg to fund further support for students with additional needs.

Restrrcted Fixed Asset Funds: :
DfE/ESFA capital grants - represent amounts received from the ESFA including Devolved formula capltal

. (DFC) grant and MAT School Condition Allocation (SCA). DFC funding can. be used for improvements and

repairs to buildings and other facilities, including ICT or repairs, refurbishment and minor works in accordance .
with priorities set by the academies. SCA is specifically to. ensure that our academy burldmgs are kept in good
condmon and that all children can learn in a safe and effective environment. .

" Transferred on conversions - this represents the bqumgs and equrpment donated to the academles from the

Local Authorlty on conversmn to.an academy

Transfers : .
Transfers represent expendrture being funded from unrestncted funds and repalrs and maintenance funded

from capital grants
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Notes to the accouhts for the year ended 31 August'2017 (conti‘nued)‘

17

'Funds,

Move}ments' in funds - previous year
' ' ’ Balance at
1 September

. Restricted géneral funds
. General Annual Grant

Start up grants

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds

Funds excluding pensions

" Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE / ESFA capital grants"
Capital exbenditure from GAG
Transfer on conversion

Total restricted funds

fUn'restric'ted.fu nds

General funds

" Total funds

2015 Income
£'000 £'000

; 21,428

; 4

; 3.288

698 1,136
o 792
698 26,648

_ (4,700) -
(4,002) 26,648
138 ;
1,561 ;
66,508 ;
68,207 -
64,205 26,648
3,543 - 844
67,748 . 27:492
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Expenditure
£'000 -

(21,428)
4)
(3,288)
(1,831)
(792)

(27,343)
(576)

(27,919)

(756)
. (499)

(1,255)

(29,174)

(775)

(29,949) -

Gains,

losses and
transfers
£'000 -

)

- (4252)

Balance at
31 August
2016
£'000

3
(9,528)

(9,525).

138
805
66,009

66,952

57 427

3,612

61039




Uniyérsity, of Brighton Académies Trust (formerly'Hastings Academies Trustj
Notes to the accounts for_ the.year ended 31 'August' 2017 (continued)
17 Fu-n'ds |

Total funds analysis by academy

. . _ B . Total
"Fund balances at 31 August_ 2017 were allocated as follows: - £'000
The Baird Primary Academy o S o o ' ‘ 165
- Churchwood Primary Academy . o . 29
Dudley Infant Academy , . . 1 o " 51
" Hollington Primary Academy : B v ‘ ', : 409
Robsack Wood Primary Academy ' ’ . 472
Silverdale Primary Academy o o : ‘ . 336
West St Leonards Primary Academy _ o . o . ) ‘ ‘ o 258
The Hastings Academy : : S : . a
:The St Leonards Academy o 4 . A ' . .- 1,226
- Central services ‘ ' o B ‘ ' . 318
" Total beforé fixed assets fund and pension reserve h o . 3,268
* Restricted fixed asset fund o o o . 65959
Pension reserve - o ‘ o ' (5,020) -
Totalfunds R o o 64,207
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UnlverSIty of Brlghton Academles Trust (formerly Hastlngs Academles Trust)
‘Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contlnued)
17 Funds : |
| .Totalk_ cost arralysis by acad'emy

~ Expenditure incurred by_,eéch academy during the year was 'aslf,ollcws:

Teaching and Other support Educétion'al. Other costs ‘Total

educational  staff costs supplies excluding
support staff ‘ -depreciation
costs - ' . ,
£'000 "~ £'000 _ £'000 . £'000 : £'000
The Baird Primary Academy 1329 135 89 413 1,966
Churchwood Primary Academy. 913 . 113 40 191 . 1,257
-Dudley Infant Academy - 528 ) 57 . - 30 215 830
Hollington Primary Academy . 1,547 106 . . 48 288" " 1,989
Robsack Wood Primary . , 1,569 - ° 180 - 76 - 457 - 2,282
Academy - ' o Co v
Silverdale Primary Academy 1,964 . 169 .55 . 315 2,503
West St Leonards Prlmary : : 1,299 "227 71 . 382 1,979
Academy : : . - A .
The Hastings Academy 3,445 730 264 709 5,148
The St Leonards Academy ' 5,457 808 463 - 1,098 7,826 -
Central services e 289 2,555 S 1,112 3,956
18,340 . 5,080 71,136 . 5,180 29,736

—_— o emmm— e ===
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| University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies'Trust)
Notes to the accounts for the ye'a'r en'd’e‘d 31 August 2017 (contihued)
"‘i7 -Fund‘sv" ’ . | |

Funds analysis by academy - 'previous year :
- o . . Total

. . . o o . .. 2016
Fund balances at 31 August 2016 were allocated as follows: By : . £000
The Baird Primary Academy. - : . ' ) - 231
Churchwood Primary Academy : : - : ‘ 53
Dudley Infant Academy - - S o : : - 44

. Hollington Primary Academy - . ' ) 325
. Robsack Wood Primary Academy . - ' ‘ , 515
. Silverdale Primary Academy- - . . ’ 7 ’ o " 348
West St Leonards Primary Academy =~ . _ . o ' T281
The Hastings Academy . : : ’ N ' (89)
The.St Leonards Academy - A ) T ) . L 1,597
Central services : R ' : 310
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve o 3,615
Restricted fixed asset fund - . o ‘ - . : 66,952
Pension reserve : . ' S _ o (9,528)

Total funds | o ‘ o 61,039
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UnlverS|ty of Brlghton Academles Trust (formerly Hastmgs Academles Trust) .
Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contmued)

17

18

Funds

Total cost ahalysis by academy - previous yéar .

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the previous year was as follows:

, Teachi'ng and Other support Educational

educational
support staff
" costs
£'000
The Baird Primary Academy . 1,183
Churchwood Primary Academy. ' 861
Dudley Infant Academy . 562
Hollington Primary Academy ’ 1,355
Robsack Wood anary : 1 1,311
Academy , ’
Silverdale anary Academy 1,681
West St Leonards Primary 1,331
Academy . C )
The Hastings Academy R 3,697
The St Leonards Academy © 5,313
Central services . : ‘ 2
17,296

Analysis of net assets between funds

‘Fund balances at 31 August 2017 are. . -

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors falllng due within one year
Def ned benefit pension liability

/ .

~ staff costs

£000

193
210

76
- 170
-417

248

628
848
1,569

4,560

Unrestricted
Funds
"~ £'000

3,268

3,268
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201 . .

;supplies

£000

128 .

82
29
81
.96

245

132
383
644

1,820

‘Other costs
excluding
depreciation

£'000

309 -
246.

221

374

282

369

204

737 -
- 1,066

1,120

5018

Restricted funds:

General

£'000 -

2.857 .
©(2,857)

(5,020)

| (5,020)

Fixed asset .

£'000

65,959

65,959

" Total
2016

£'000

1,813
1,399
888
1,980

. 2,106

- 2543

1,958

5445
7,871
2,691

' 28,694

-Toial
2017
£'000

" 65,959

6,125
(2.857)

. (5,020)

64,207




‘University of Brighton Academies_}Trust (formerly Hastinés Academies Trust)

Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued) '

18

19

. Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted i Restricted funds: Total

Funds ~ General Fixedasset - = 2016
£'000 . £'000 £'000° £'000
~ Fund balances at 31 August 2016 are ‘ ’ . o -
represented by: , ‘_ . ' O
Tangible fixed assets : . - ] - 66,952 66,952
- Currentassets -~ ' : 5,516 o911 - oo 6,427
_ Creditors falling due within one year - - C(1,904) (908) - - (2,812)
. Defined benefit pension liability - T - - (9,528) - -(9:528)
3,612 .(9,525) 66,952 61,039

Pensions and SImllar obligations

) The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pensmn schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff;, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by East Sussex Pensuon Fund. Both are multl -employer
defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the 'advice of independent qualif ed actuaries The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012, and that of the LGPS related to the
perlod ended 31 March 2016.

Contributions amountung to £402k (2016 £399k) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2017 and are
mcluded within creditors. .

Teachers' Pe‘nsioniScheme

Introductlon

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contnbutory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007,
automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract although.they

. are abIe to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits
are pald by public funds provided by Parliament.

~ Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
" The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in

accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap). Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at-31 March 2012 and in accordance with
the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was
published.by the Department for Education on 8 June 2014.
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Umversrty of Brlghton Academles Trust (formerly Hastlngs Academies Trust)
- Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contlnued)

19 Pensionsand similar obligations

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: .

. employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensmnable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge (currently 14.1%) :

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benef its) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estlmated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuatron date) of £176 600 million giving a notional

~ past service deficit of £14,900 million
an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensronable pay wrll be applled to future, valuations
the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnrngs The rate of :
real earnmgs growth is assumed to be 2. 75% The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

- Dunng the previous year the employer contnbutlon rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuatlon for 2012 determined
an employer rate of 16.48%, which was payable from September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is-
currently underway based on -April 2016 data, whereupon the-employer contnbutron rate is expected to be
reassessed and will be: payable from 1 April 2019. .

The employer's pensron costs paid to the TPS in the perrod amounted to £1,616k (2016: £1 598k)

A copy of the valuation report and supportmg documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

-Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi- employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contrlbutlon scheme The trust has set out
above the information available on the scheme : .

. Local Government Pensron Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20. 1% for
employers and 5.5% to 12.8% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Educatron toa guarantee that, in the

-event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
. Department for Educatlon The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made _ . ' . : . : ‘ 2017 2016
- - £'000 £000
Employer's contributions o . o 1,199 1,096
Employees' contributions - . ‘ : : . ..387 - 339 -
Total contributions o ‘ - 1,566 1,435
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Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contmued)

19 Pensions and similar obligations

" Principal actuarfa_l aSsumptions o : 201 7 : 2016

L : . - - E . : : % - ' %
"Rate of increases in salaries ‘ . . : o . o o 2.8 4
Rate of increase for pensions in payment - : ) . .. 24 2
Discount rate ' ' g L . o 25 2

The current mortality assumptnons include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortality rates. The .
assumed life expectatlons on ret|rement age 65 are:

2017 - 2016 '
Years Years
.Retiring today ) . ‘ BT
- Males S , o 221 22
-Females - o . o : . : 244 . 24
" Retiring in 20 years _ . : B : ' ' _
- Males . , T . o 23.8 .- 24
- Females- : 4 ; : - 263 . 27
Scheme Iiabilities would have been affected.by changes in assumptions as follows:
2017 2016
. : , : £'000 ~£'000
Discount rate - 0.5% A - . -2,841 3,282
Salary rate + 0.5% o . o ) » © 829 - - 1,250
Pension rate + 0.5% . : - . ,2,263 . 1,912 -
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme- . . 2017 ' 2016
: : ' ' " " Fair value Fair value
£000 . £'000
Equiies . . - ‘ ’ : : _ 10,794 © 6,394
Bonds : . , : . _ 2,099 - T 1,441
Property - ' ' ' . = - 1,499 : 990
Other assets . _ . A o 599 . 180
-Total market value of aseets - - ) ' S . - 14,991 : 9,005
Actual feturﬁ on scheme assets - gain/(loss) . ' 4 . ~1,093 . 100

_—
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19 Pensions and similar obligations

_ Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities : 2017 "2016
' ' ~ £000 - £000
Current service cost i , e v : 2,282 1,487
Past service cost ' C ' 4 (4,986) 5,928 -
Interest income ’ : o o - (276) - (369)
Interest cost . o ' o - 488 554
Benefit changes, curtailments and settlements gains or losses B _ 4,986. " (5,928)
Total operating charge ' L : 2,494 1672
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations . o 2017 . 2016
‘ A : : : £000 . £'000
Obligations at 1 September 2016 . S : 21,977 13705
Current service cost . : ' - ' 2,282 1,487
‘Interest cost E ’ . 4 i . ' » a 488 554
- Employee contributions - , - 367 339.
Benefits paid N _ _ - ' (117) © (36)
Past service cost : : : ‘ (4,986) ' 5,928
.-At 31 August 2017 . R ‘ . -20,011 21,977
Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets o : '
S ’ : ' 2017 ’ 2016
£'000 : £'000
Assets at 1 September 2016 - o , T 12,449 9,005
interest income ‘ o ‘ : .276, - 369
Actuarial gain ' : ’ 7 817 1,676
Employer. contributions , o . - 1,199 . 1,096
Employee contributions ' , ‘ , - 367 - 339
Benefits paid _ . 117) (36)
_At31August2017 - I 14991 12,449

Page 55 0f 58 .



University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly HaStihgs Academies Truét)

20

21

22

" Reconciliation of net‘expenditure to net cash flows from operating activities

| Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

2017, . 2016

. £'000 £'000
Net expenditure for the reporting period . ) 4 : A (2,635) ’ (2,45'7') A
Adjusted for: . o ‘ B - '\ o )
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital mcome R (612) (127)

- Investment income receivable - o ' ) (24)
Defined benefit pension costs less contrlbutlons payable 1,083 576
Defined benefit pension net finance cost ‘ - o 212 oo

. Depreciation of tangible fixed assets : : 993 - 1,255

‘(Increase) in debtors’ . S . (11) ©(386)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors ' ' 45 - - 818
" Net cash used in operating abtivitjes : . . (C7) R (345)

\

Commitments under operating leases

At 31 August 2017 the total future mmnmum lease payments under’ non cancellable operating leases were as
follows i :

2017 - 2016

£'000 - £'000
Amounts due within one year ) o 64 ' ) ‘94
_Amounts due.in two and five years A . N - 42 - 87

106 181

Related party transactlons

Owing to the nature of the Trust's operations and the composutlon of the Board of Directors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, there is a strong possibility that transactions will take place with
organisations in which a member of the Board of Directors may have an interest. All transactions involving 'such

- organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the Trust's financial regulations. Since

incorporation the Trust has had three sponsors, the University of Brighton, East Sussex County Council and
British Telecom. - East Sussex County Council formally withdrew as a sponsor in July 2016, and British Telecom
withdrew in Aprll 2017.

The Unwersnty of Brighton is the lead sponsor of the Trust and prowdes managerial and administrative support
to enable the Trust to achieve its objectives. Several members of the Trust’'s Senior Management Team (Chief
Executive, Director of Policy and Governance, Director of Operational Services and Director of School-
Improvement) and one member of administrative staff supporting the Trust's work have contracts of

employment with the University of Brighton, a proportion of their sa|ary costs are re- charged to the Trust ..~

£263,990-(15- 16 £331 645)

The former Chief Executive retired on 31st December 2016. During his employment he only received
remuneration in respect of services provided undertaking the role of Chief Executive under his contract of

employment and not in respect of his role as Trustee. The value of his’ remuneration was as follows:

P Griffiths (Chief Executive and trustee) o ' :
Remuneration: - . £40,000 - £45, 000 (15-16: £90 000 - £95 ,000)
Employers pension contributions: £5,000 - £10,000 (15-16: £15,000 - £20,000)

The Interim Chief Executive took up his role as of 1%.January 2017 at no cost to the Trust.
Other key management personnel also employed through the University are the
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Director of Policy and Governance Director of Operatronal Services and Director of School Improvement. The
total amount of employee benefits (including: employer pensions contributions) received for servrce to the
academy trust was £210,909 (15-16: £181,828).

Other payments were made to the University by the Trust for the following:- -

Schools Direct Salaried Students - . . : ) 5,830 |
Secondments’ : _ 7,765
Marketing : , ’ . 674
Teacher Training . . 1,373
Office costs (inc hosprtalrty) ) . 3,589 | -
Staff Travel - : .. 4,787
' S 23,988

Total payments made to the University by the Trust during the year amounted to £287,978 (15-16 £344 ,662).
£19,309 was outstanding at 31 August 2017. Payments have also been made drrectly by academies for -
teacher training (£5 340)

_In addition £3,355 income has been. received from the University of Brighton during the year: é1 ,400 for due
-diligence on potentially converting academies, £1 955 for reimbursement of pupil travel to the Professor C
Gull programme at the University.

The Trust ‘purchas_e telephony services from British Telecom.. Totat expenditure for 2016/17 is-£1 ,948
- (2015/16 £4,788). One payment of £69-was outstanding at the end of the year.

The Trust shares central administrative staff with the University of Brighton Academies Trust (UoBAT). All
-such staff are employed by the Trust, with UoBAT being invoiced an-agreed share of these salaries and
- expenses. The total for 2016-17 is £577,752, wrth £93,142 outstandrng at the end of the year.

Director Steve Manwaring is also a Trustee of the Education Futures Trust, of which all the Trust academies
are.members. As such they receive advice, training, and access to educationally enhancing programmes.
Total payments to the Education Futures Trust for 2016-17 was £98,515 (15-16: £99,040), of which £2,660
was outstanding at the end of the year.

23 Members Ilabllrty

Each member of the charitable company -undertakes to contnbute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 amount as stated in memorandum and articles of
association] for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases to be a member. )
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24  Teaching school trading account : . 2017 o . 2016
: ‘ S £000 . £000 . £'000 © £'000 -

Direct income o . ‘
Government grants : P , 124

Direct costs

Direct staff costs‘_ S : : . 67 ‘ - T
Educational supplies and services - 39 - . .
© . Staff development - . : ' 2. N -
108 » : .
Other costs . o : . o
Support staff costs - : . : _ 8 : . -
- Other support costs . - 8 - . -
16 .
Total expenditure o ' A o (124) .

Sufplusl(deficit) from all sources - o ' C-
Teaching school.balances at 1 September 2016 ‘ o .

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2017 _ V -

Page 58 of 58



